# Uldaho Law **Digital Commons** @ **Uldaho Law**

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

1-16-2014

# Elcock v. State Appellant's Brief Dckt. 41195

8. Date Occurred	9. Time Occurred	10. Route To	12. Division		
04/15/06		File	CID		

He indicated that he had in fact been at a Club at 16<sup>th</sup> & Grove on the night in question. That he had helped work the door.

He says he didn't know anything about a shooting until the following day when a female friend said something about it. That based on the description she gave him of the suspect he may have said something about the suspect being in the bar. But that he was simply wondering aloud based on the race of the suspect and the make up of the crowd at the Club.

He didn't say he saw or knew a suspect. Or that he had seen or heard the Lynch brothers bragging. Only that he wondered if the suspect could have been in the Club.

04/19/06 I was assigned to contact and interview a subject by the name of Gabe at He is reported to have information related to the shooting.

I called and made arraignments to meet Gabe. Who identified himself as Gabriel Pejohn Gable B/M, Gabe indicated that he has been staying at He has been working for Ikenberry (?sp) Drywall.

He indicated that he was concerned about having to testify or that people knew he had talked to the police. He also indicated that he has pending charges and would like to see if the information he has could help him with those charges.

I explained to him that I could make no promises or deals. That he may have to testify and that the prosecutors can review his information.

Gabe indicated he was awakened about 0400 hrs. Saturday morning by some people coming into the home. That he overheard conversation about what took place.

He named the people he knows to have been involved or to have information as Demetrius Lynch, Terrance Lynch, Brodaus Lynch, Face (who he later identified as Elcock), Shellie Cunningham, and Langston Cobb.

He explained that he woke up and questioned what was wrong that he knew something was wrong because everyone seemed upset. He questioned his sister Jonacca and she told him that Face shot up a party last night. That he shot four people.

eporting Officer / Serial / Date/Time	Supervisor Approving / Serial / Date/Time
Det. M Ayotte 348	

THE

15



#### Narrative Report Supplement

# Boise Police Department Report Type: Homicide

DR# 2006 - 611722

Chg# Offesse/Charge 1 Hornicide	Date of This Narrative 4/15/2006
	Date & Time Occurred 4/15/2006 0018
4 Location of Occurrence	

Shellie then started over and said that he, Demi, T.T., Broadaus, and Face were all over at Julius Sr's house in Meridian drinking. He estimated this to be around 9pm. Shellie said they then talked Julius Sr into coming into Boise and drink with them at the club. Shellie said they got to the club around 1145pm-midnight. He said the group was standing near the front door mulling over if they wanted to pay the \$10 cover. That was when Broadaus received a phone call from Antwan Harris. Antwan said he needed their help with Bo.

Shellie said they arrived at the apartment complex and met with Langston who was already there. Shellie sees Langston hand Face a chrome 9mm. Langston told Face to cock it. Face pulled the slide back and ejected a bullet. Shellie said Face approached Bo. Face is yelling, talking about are you mesing with my kids. Face may have hit Bo in the face with the gun. A white female wearing a white jacket with a black hat says "we don't want problems." Several people see the gun and yell and start running into the apartment. Shellie said Face raised the gun and started firing. Shellie thought Face fired 5 or so times. Shellie said that because of where he was standing it appears that Face is firing into a wall.

Shellie said that he was standing about ten feet from Face when he started firing. Demetrius was only a few feet away from Face. Shellie said he saw Demetrius cover his ear near the gun because it was so close. T.T. and Broadaus were behind Face. Langston was still by his own car.

After the shots were fired everyone ran to the Ford Explorer they arrived in except they now had Antwan as well. They all went to the club and drank until 3am or so. Julius Sr. got a ride home from someone else. The group went back to Broadaus' apartment. Several girls arrived at Broadaus' and T.T. and Face went over to their house near Overland and Columbus.

Shellie said around 9am they picked up T.T. and Face. They all drove down to Demetrius' house on Good St. They are breakfast. They then dropped Antwan off in the area of S. Owyhee. Shellie went back to Broadaus' to get some of his stuff and then went home to

Shellie described what each person was wearing:

T.T.- Carmello Anthony gear-baby blue and yellow.

Broadaus- grey tee shirt, black coat and a baseball cap

Antwan- black hoody sweatshirt with "Los Angeles" on front and Timberland boots

Shellie- striped "Sean John" long sleeve shirt(couldn't remember anything else)

Face- NY Yankees hat, dark blue "Southpole" jacket, blue jeans and tennis shoes.

This interview was not intially recorded but after retrieving a recorder it was.

ROUTE TO DET. D. SMITH-CID PERSONS

C LeBar 629 L Graham 378 M \_ \

รงเกษายวจังตัวสาที่ใจได้เรีย

-MIUIT-4

#### Narrative Report Supplement

REPORTING OFFICER



# Boise Police Department Report Type: Homicide

DR# 2006 - 611722

Chg# Offense/Charge 1 Homicide	Date of This Narrative  4/15/2006  Date & Time Occurred  4/15/2006 0018
4 Location of Occurrence	

time and was not thinking clearly. However, he assured me that he was now feeling better and ready to view them again. I started by providing him a Photographic Admonition form labled #1 at the top. He read the form and indicated he understood it. I then showed him the provided line-up form of which he pointed to position #5 and stated "that is TT" or Terrence Lynch. He told us again that Terrence "TT" was standing near the shooter. Derrek signed the form and indicated photo #616201 as a person being involved, see attached.

I next provided Derrek a second Photographic Admonition form of which he again signed, labled #2 at the top. I then showed him the provided line-up also labled #2 at the top. Derrek viewed the line-up and then told us the he felt the subject in position #6 looked "very close" to the shooter but that he was not 100% sure. He then indicated his decision on the form as the individual who appears most like the suspect who fired the gun; see attached form. The person in position #6 is Braudus Lynch.

I then provided him with a third Photographic Admonition form which he again read and signed, labled #3 at the top. I next showed him the provided line-up also labled #3 at the top. Derrek viewed the line-up and then indicated he did not recognize anyone in the line-up as being involved. He then signed the form; see attached.

LeBar and I then returned to CID for the next briefing. I turned all three provided photo line-ups over to Detective Smith and karen Gantz.

N Duggan 510 M Barnett 544

ADA#

Page 74 of

# BOISE POLICE DEPARTMENT/ADA COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT STATE -5

1.	Incident/Topic		2. Subject/Victim's Name	3. RD	4. DR No
НС	omicide				611-722
5.,	Location/Address		SIVES 34	6. Phone	7. Page:
					1
8.	Date Occurred	9. Time Occurred 1	10. Route To	12. Division	
1	04/15/06	0018	File	CID	

04/15/06, 0100hrs., I was called to CID by Sgt. Buzzini in reference to a multiple shooting situation. I arrived at the station and was briefed by Sgt. Buzzini. I began to interview witnesses that were brought from the scene to our location.

I met with the following three persons individually.

Timothy Lyn Friel

WMA, 24yrs.,

Tara Luckow

Jami Michelle Nielsen

o154hrs., I spoke with Timothy Friel. He states that he lives on the second floor apartment across from where the shooting took place. That apartment was apparently on the first floor. Tim said that there was a party going on at Joni's apartment. He went on to say that around 2300hrs., a green ford escort arrived at the complex. It was driven by two black male adults. They apparently could not get through the vehicle parking congestion near Joni's apartment. They asked Joni to have some of the cars moved by their owners. This was done. The two black males were driving a dark green Ford Escort. Tim felt that it was possible that these were the shooters involved as he did see two BMA's standing at the window of the victims apartment. One of the men pointed a gun at the glass and fired several rounds and then heard a click or failure to fire. The gun then was fired some more times. The other man stood near the shooter and observed. Tim described the shooter as a BMA, 504/506, 180lbs, 20's. He was wearing a ball cap, white bandanna checkered with black. He wore a blue shiny jersey type shirt.

Reporting Officer / Serial / Date/Time	Supervisor Approving / Serial / Date/Time
K. McAllister #373	R. Buzzini #408

BPD-002a-ADP 1994

m

, —	2X11bit -6
lease Print ame Tim Fiel	Ada County Sheriff's Department
	Boise Police Department
ate of Birth	STANDARD STATEMENT FORM
ity/State/Zip	- -
ome Phor.	D.R. No. 611722
/ork Addres Work Phone_	Date 4-15-06
student, name of school	Time
I was in my apartment with I was in The Both room and	my ficance Trista hunter
= was in The Both room and	she was in the Bed room.
•	
the came storning in and said	She herd Gun Shots and asked
me if I would look out	side
I whent to the Balkany wick	over Looks Johnus mikes and
I saw A Black man worm A	Blue and Yellow or Blue and whin
sersea short Black or Bloca	exts A Bandance protera Baseball cap
And A talker Black man dresd is	n all Black Standing out Side
THE DOOR	an space space of state
The man in the Jersy Start	and Chapters At the indian
	TO WINDOW
I Saw and herd three shots,	I saw them torn like the
wer going to Leave.	
I can out Side lan toards	my trooper and approach
the near on the divers side	I quicky stopt when to
two or Black men ran at me	to go to ther car the man
in the Jersy Lifted his hand	l at me I could clearly see
the schoete of a pistal with	the homer Stide pold Backin
the position whe it is not of	amo
	•
- < ,	
, Time Friel have	read the above statement consisting of pages,
and I know the same to be a true statement as given by me.	i have initialed all mistakes noticed by me.
Witnessed By: 7. L.\ Staten	nent By:
a. (hu flot	- fall free
,∕Signatur∉)	(Signature)

# BOISE POLICE DEPARTMENT/ADA COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT 2 hibit - 7

<ol> <li>Incident/Topic</li> </ol>		2. Subject/Victim's Name		3. RD	4. DR No
Homicide		Buenrostro, April		49	611-722
5. Location/Address		M TO BELL SPACE SECTION	6. Phone		7. Page
8. Date Occurred	9. Time Occurred	10. Route To	12. Division	1	
4-15-06	0018	Co. Prosecutor	CID		

stated he didn't see this but Mike told him later. He stated Mike had told him that the gun didn't go off and that the suspect had apparently racked the slide.

At this point everyone inside the apartment was trying to get away from the door but due to being in a group they were falling over each other. He stated shots were fired and everyone was trying to lay on the floor. He stated he pulled his girlfriend to the floor and stayed there until the shots ended.

He stated he had not been able to see the shooter's face since he was just to the right of the door and the porch light was burned out. He also stated that we needed to speak with his neighbor, Tim Friel that had seen the suspects as they ran away. He provided a cell phone number which we called and arranged for an interview.

At approximately 2012 hrs., Det. Quilter and I began an interview of Tim Friel,

Friel stated he had been in the bathroom when his girlfriend yelled at him to come out because she had heard what she thought were shots. He ran to the balcony and heard two or three shots and then ran down to the parking lot where he stood next to his car that was parked directly across from the victim's apartment.

He observed two black males run past him. One suspect pointed a handgun at him as he ran by. He could see the weapon in silhouette and could see that the slide was locked back. He estimated that he was approximately 5' away from the suspect as he ran past him. He reported that it was too dark to see the suspect's face but could tell that he was a BMA, approximately 5' 8", 180 lbs, wearing a blue or black baseball cap with a white bandana underneath the cap. The cap was canted to the side. He was wearing a blue and white or blue and yellow jersey and baggy jeans. A second suspect was running just slightly behind him. He was described as being approximately 6'-6' 1", 200-220 lbs., dressed in all dark clothing that was more form fitting and not baggy. He observed the suspects run to the east and get into a late model green Ford Escort. The suspect with the gun was the driver. He could not identify either subject but could tell that the passenger was also a BMA.

After the two males ran past him, he ran to the victim's apartment to render aid. He stated he believed the second male he observed run past him was Terrance Lynch because he had seen him earlier in the day wearing the same type clothing.

At approximately 2145 hrs., Det. Quilter and I began a recorded interview of Kalli Nielsen,

Reporting Officer / Serial / Date/Time	Supervisor Approving / Serial / Date/Time
Det. Greg Morgan 322 4-21-06	Sgt. Mark Barnett 544 4-21-06

BPD-002a-ADP 1994

#### Narrative Report Supplement

NARRATIVE

#### Boise Police Department Report Type: Homicide

DR# 2006 - 611722

Chgs Offense/Charge
1 Hornicide

Date of This Narrative
4/15/2006

Date & Time Occurred
4/15/2006 0018

4 Location of Occurrence

On 4/15/06 at approximately 0100 hours I received a phone call at my residence from my direct supervisor Sgt. Graham. He advised me that there had been a shooting. He stated there were several victims and many witnesses. He told me to report to the CID annex and assist other detectives with interviews.

Upon my arrival at CID I was quickly briefed on what had occurred. I was asked to help with interviewing witnesses. Below are summaries of my interviews.

I spoke to the following persons:

Phakdymanivong, Randy

Randy told me that he and a female named Amanda Sutton were hanging out at her house when she spoke to Johnny. Johnny invited the both of them over to his house for a party. Randy and Amanda got into her car and drove to Johnny's, stopping and getting drive-thru food first. Upon arriving at the apartment complex they parked. They stayed in the car and ate their food. Randy said when he finished he got out of the car. He was waiting for Amanda when he observed two vehicles pull into the apartment complex parking lot. Randy described the cars as a black Acura Integra 2dr low with black rims and a silver Hyundai Tiburon with a rear spoiler fin. Randy said he watched as many as 10 black males get out of the cars and walk towards Johnny's apartment. Randy and Amanda started to follow them but Randy heard what he thought was the racking of a handgun. Randy told Amanda to get back to the car. They went back to the car and heard numerous gunshots. Randy told Amanda to leave and they did. Randy said they drove away to get away from the males but soon after called 911 and returned to the scene where they spoke to uniformed patrol officers who transported them to CID. Randy said he could not identify the males.

This interview was recorded.

Sanders. Lisa Marie

Lisa told me that she recently moved into apartment where the shooting occurred. She said she is good friends with resident Mike Barylski. Lisa said tonight they were having friends over and drinking. She said Beaufilis "Bo" Bashale was exceptionally drunk and being loud. She said he was primarily outside with two other black males she only knows as "E-man" and John. Lisa said she and Mike were in his bedroom alone when someone said there was going to be a fight. Mike and Lisa left the bedroom and went out into the living room. Lisa said she remembers the shooting occurring and she went to the living room floor. Lisa believed there were two shooters. The one she saw was wearing a baby blue do-rag and had a short afro. He had a blue and white striped shirt. Lisa said she then went to a back bedroom and hid.

\_This Interview was recorded.

Nielsen, Jordyn S

Jordyn told me that she was helping her older sister Jamie babysit several children in Jamie's apartment,

C LeBar

629

L Graham

378

The war is the graduate

APPROVED BY



Please Print Name W8 M Sanders	Ada County Sheriff's Department Boise Police Department
Date of Birth	
aress	STANDARD STATEMENT FORM
City/State/Zip	
Home Phone	D.R. No. 611722
Work Address N1 A Work Phone N1 A	Date 4-15-06
If student, name of school WA	Time
Michael Farwing, Tava Croila de	ohnny white gagle Anthony +
	Inrow a get together.
My friend Beauthis & amanuel.	tohn were upset about
a hun in w/ T.T (Terrance	+ Brotis) because of
Beautis protner D.J. Bische	Wi, they believed that
he had snitched on his broti	ur. Michael + I had
came from the back room to	find-tuen yelling
about the enjounterment	had pust had with It
Brotis. Mext-trung I know I	
aning to fight C Brouth is 9 mi	in + John). Then a
Hack man w/a babu blu	
I white Stribed shirt cam	
WI a 9 mm gun + Dointec	
Michael misking Tank down	
we could at in the load	mond my franct Johns
DUSTO & NAC DUIT DE TOO 11/4	u and was dot intra
Top. I Saw the air who was	short instrumental full to
the applying depot that some	SUM A AMA THE DUTTE OF
through the undow ! be	110 Me trois were two
Clambers	Ille Ture Were two
SY IUGICIS.	
**	
LISA SANDERS, have rea	ad the above statement consisting of pages
and I know the same to be a true statement as given by me. I h	
	1
Vitnessed By: # 383	By: 1 SW Sund M-
(Sinnature)	(Signature)

(Signature)

10



EXhibit-10

# Narrative Report Supplement

#### Boise Police Department Report Type: Homicide

				-		-
DR#	2006		CAL		700	
	2006	-	01.	1	(ZZ	

Chg# OffenseCharge 1 Homicide	Date of This Narrative 4/18/2006  Date & Time Occurred 4/15/2006 0018
4 Location of Occurrence	

Tasked Jennica if she knew who had fired the gun. She told me that her friend, Jasmine Harris, had told her that Langston Cobb fired the gun. She said that Jasmine most likely got the information from Jordan.

Jennica's cell phone had previously been seized, and a search warrant had been served upon it. Detective Lee Reiber had conducted the forensic analysis on the telephone. He had told me that Jennica had erased all of her text messages. I asked Jennica about this, and she did not have an answer for why Detective Reiber found that on her phone.

Jennica told me that the only people she called that night were a guy named Henessee who is in the Air Force in Mountain Home, a person named Claudia Davis at and a friend named Rachel Clark at .

#### Conclusion:

This was the end of my second interview with Jennica.

Admin Admin	<b>.</b>		
M Brechwald	641	R Winegar	488
REPORTING OFFICER	ADA#	APPROVED BY	ADA#

1Xhibit -11

# BOISE POLICE DEPARTMENT/ADA COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

1.	Incident/Topic		2. Subject.	/Victim's Name		3. RD	4. DR No
Н	omicide	·	Buenrost	ro, April		49	611-722
5.	Location/Address	1, Ohr Ja 1	ustan	WAS INPORPRIA	6. Phone		7. Page
_				The Alfila			3
8.	Date Occurred	9. Time Occurred	10. Route To		12. Division		
	4-15-06	0018	Co.	Prosecutor	CID		

Lynch had testified against him but primarily because T. T. and his family claimed to be gangsters and they didn't want to be involved.

I asked him if he knew who had shot him. He stated a BMA named Face had shot him and the others. He stated there had been an argument outside of the apartment in the parking lot. Shortly, thereafter a group of black males had come walking towards the apartment. He stated they had gone back inside the apartment and that as they were walking inside he saw Face and saw that he had a gun in his hand. He stated Face started shooting into the apartment and he had tackled a female and had laid on top of her during the shooting. He had been struck in his right leg by a bullet.

I asked him if he was sure if Face had been the shooter and he stated he had seen it in his hand just prior to the shots being fired. I asked him if he knew what Face's real name was. He stated he knew that the Lynch's hung out with Felicia Martin who lived in the complex. He stated he thought Face's real name was Julius. I asked him if Face was Julius Lynch. He stated he believed that was correct.

I then met with Det. Quilter who had been interviewing John Anthony. Officer Mike Richmond was in the process of collecting a bullet that had been removed from Anthony's leg. After the bullet was collected, I responded to CID to assist with additional interviews. I found that the other detectives had either or were in the process of completing the interviews of witnesses at the scene.

One of the persons that had been interviewed was the roommate of John Anthony whose name was Michael Barylski. He had been shown a photo lineup that contained Brodaus Lynch. He had identified Lynch as the person with the gun that shot into the apartment.