4-8-2014

Elcock v. State Respondent's Brief Dckt. 41195

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Nature of the Case

Kenneth Edward Elcock appeals, *pro se*, from the summary dismissal of his successive petition for post-conviction relief.

Statement of Facts and Course of the Proceedings

The relevant facts of Elcock's underlying crime were outlined by the district court in its notice of intent to dismiss Elcock's successive petition for post-conviction relief, as follows:

In the early morning hours of April 15, 2006, the Petitioner and his two friends arrived at the Whispering Pine apartment complex where they knew a man who was throwing a party at his apartment. After arriving at the apartment complex the petitioner approached the man, raised his gun to the man's face, and pulled the trigger. The gun misfired and the man ran for cover in his apartment. After cocking the gun, the petitioner pointed the gun at the plate glass window in the apartment and opened fire. The bullets went through the window, seriously wounding three of the people inside including a fourteen year old girl, [A.B.], who died as a result of her wounds.

The petitioner was charged with one count of First Degree Murder, three counts of Aggravated Battery, one count of Unlawful Discharge of a Firearm at a Dwelling House, one count of Aggravated Assault and a sentencing enhancement based on the use of a firearm in the commission of a crime. Pursuant to a valid plea agreement entered into with the State, the State agreed to amend the First Degree Murder charge to Murder in the Second Degree, and to dismiss the Unlawful Discharge of a Firearm at a Dwelling House and firearm enhancement; in exchange for the his [sic] guilty pleas to Murder in the Second Degree, three counts of Aggravated Battery and one count of Aggravated Assault.

(R., pp.213-214.)

The trial court sentenced Elcock to indeterminate life with the first 40 years fixed on the murder charge, concurrent sentences of 15 years fixed on each

aggravated battery charge, and a “concurrent sentence of five years” for the aggravated assault. (R., pp.215-216.) Elcock filed a motion for reduction of his sentence pursuant to Rule 35. (R., p.216.) The trial court denied the motion and the Court of Appeals upheld Elcock’s sentence in an unpublished opinion. See State v. Elcock, Docket No. 33861, 2008 Unpublished Opinion No. 379 (Idaho App., Feb. 28, 2008).

Elcock filed his first petition for post-conviction relief in 2007. (R., p.216.) After multiple amendments to his petition and three filed notices of intent to dismiss by the court, the district court ultimately dismissed Elcock’s petition because his claims were not supported by the record. (Id.) This decision was ultimately upheld on appeal. See State v. Elcock, Docket No. 37932, 2011 Unpublished Opinion No. 655 (Idaho App., Oct. 12, 2011).

Elcock later filed a motion to withdraw his guilty plea which was also denied by the district court. (R., p.216.) The order denying his motion to withdraw his guilty plea was affirmed by the Court of Appeals in an unpublished opinion, State v. Elcock, Docket No. 38177, 2011 Unpublished Opinion No. 422 (Idaho App., Apr. 5, 2011).

At issue in the instant appeal, Elcock filed a *pro se* successive petition for post-conviction relief on October 14, 2011 asserting the reason for the filing of a successive petition was based on “the only recently [sic] receipt of discovery material.” (R., p.4) The state filed an answer and motion for summary dismissal, asserting there had “been no showing by the petitioner that any of [his] claims could not have been raised in his first petition” or that Elcock was “entitled as a

matter of law to this successive petition.” (R., p.43.) Thereafter, the district court filed a notice of intent to dismiss Elcock’s petition for post-conviction relief and provided him with the statutory 20 days to respond. (R., pp.212-223.) The court thereafter entered a final order dismissing Elcock’s petition, concluding Elcock had “not asserted any new evidence, but merely rehash[ed] previously made arguments made in both this case and his previously adjudicated first petition for post-conviction relief.” (R., p.248.) “Most importantly,” the district court found Elcock had “failed to allege any new facts to justify a ‘sufficient reason’ why the claims were not raised or were adequately raised in the first petition.” (Id.)

Elcock timely appealed. (R., pp.251, 270-273.)

ISSUE

Elcock's Appellant's brief does not contain a cogent statement of the issue(s) on appeal. The state phrases the issue as:

Has Elcock failed to carry his appellate burden of showing error in the summary dismissal of his successive post-conviction petition?

ARGUMENT

Elcock Has Failed To Carry His Appellate Burden Of Showing Error In The Summary Dismissal Of His Successive Post-Conviction Petition

A. Introduction

The district court summarily dismissed Elcock's successive post-conviction petition, concluding that not only was the petition without merit, but Elcock failed to establish a "sufficient reason" for the filing of a successive petition for post-conviction relief. (R., pp.248-249.) On appeal, Elcock appears to challenge the summary dismissal of his petition, but he has failed to identify any specific error by the district court and has otherwise failed to present any cogent argument or legal authority to support his appellate claims.

B. Elcock Has Waived Appellate Consideration Of His Challenge To The District Court's Order Of Summary Dismissal

It is well settled that a party waives an issue on appeal if either authority or argument is lacking. State v. Zichko, 129 Idaho 259, 263, 923 P.2d 966, 970 (1996). It is also well settled that the appellate court will not review actions of the district court for which no error has been assigned and will not otherwise search the record for errors. State v. Hoisington, 104 Idaho 153, 159, 657 P.2d 17, 23 (1983).

On appeal, Elcock appears to raise the same issues he raised in both his original and successive petitions for post-conviction relief. (See generally Appellant's brief.) Elcock does not argue, however, that the district court erred in determining there were no issues of material fact or that Elcock failed to allege

Elcock supported his appellate claims with any legal authority. Elcock has therefore not offered any argument, cogent or otherwise, to challenge the district court's rulings. (See generally Appellant's brief.)

Because Elcock has failed on appeal to identify any viable claim of error in the district court's actions and has otherwise failed to cite any relevant legal authority or make any cogent argument to support any claim of error, he has waived appellate review of any such claim and has thereby failed to show any error in the summary dismissal of his successive post-conviction petition.

CONCLUSION

The state respectfully requests that this Court affirm the district court's order summarily dismissing Elcock's petition for post-conviction relief.